
TENTERDEN TOWN COUNCIL  

Town Hall, 24 High Street, Tenterden, Kent. TN30 6AN 
 

Website: www.tenterdentowncouncil.gov.uk 
Telephone: 01580 762271 

 

 

Email: townhall@tenterdentowncouncil.gov.uk  
Facsimile: 01580 765647 

 

 

Tuesday, 5 January 2021 
INTERNAL COMMITTEE 

 
Notice is given that a Virtual meeting of the INTERNAL COMMITTEE will be 

held on MONDAY, 11TH JANUARY, 2021 following a meeting of the Town 
Council which starts at 7.00 pm. 

Zoom Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84478912207  
 
All members are summoned to attend for the purpose of considering and 

resolving upon the business to be transacted at the meeting. 

 
Phil Burgess, Town Clerk. 

 
Councillors Serving: V. Cole, Mrs. S.  Ferguson, Miss A. Gardner (Vice-Chair), C. Knowles, Dr.  L. Lovelidge, 
Mrs. P. Smith (Chair), A. Sugden and Mrs. K. Walder. 
Substitutes in the event of members’ absence: Cllrs M. Carter, J. Crawford and M. Hickmott. 
 

AGENDA 

 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE & SUBSTITUTING COUNCILLORS.  

 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST.  
 

3.   MINUTES. 
To consider and, if approved, confirm and sign the minutes and reports of 
the meeting held on 14th December 2020 as a correct record. 

 
4.   MATTERS ARISING.  

 
5.   REPRESENTATION FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC. 

Members of the public may make personal representations at this meeting by giving written notice of a request to speak and indicating 

briefly the matter of interest or relevant agenda item to the Town Clerk or Deputy Town Clerk no later than 12 noon on the day of the 

meeting. Provided always that speakers are resident in a ward of the Council and, give their full name and address prior to speaking, 

the committee Chairman may (or may choose not to) invite individuals to speak at the relevant point in the meeting. Speeches may 
not exceed three minutes duration and speakers may not participate in any subsequent debate between committee members. At the 

Chairman’s discretion, only one speech may be made in support of each side of any contentious issue. 

 
6.   COUNCILLORS' QUESTIONS. 

At the Chairman’s discretion, Councillors may ask a question about any item relevant to this committee that is not on the agenda. 
Every question shall be put and answered without discussion. An answer may take the form of a direct oral answer or reference to a 

Town Council publication. Where a reply cannot be conveniently given at this meeting, an oral or written answer may be circulated at a 

later date. All councillors present will be permitted to contribute to the debate on agenda items but only members of this committee will 

be permitted to vote. 

 
7.   ST. MICHAELS SPITFIRES. 

To consider the request from St. Michaels Spitfires regarding St. Michaels 
Recreation Ground. * 
 (Pages 1 - 2) 

 
8.   TOWN COUNCIL CHRISTMAS TREES. 

To consider solely funding all Christmas Trees installed by the Town 
Council.* 
 (Page 3) 

 
9.   ST. MICHAELS 5K & 10K RUN. 

Public Document Pack

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84478912207


 

 
To consider a request from the organisers for use of St. Michaels 
Recreation Ground for the event. * 

 (Pages 4 - 5) 
 

10.   CORRESPONDENCE. 
To note the recent letter from the chair of the TDRA and the Clerk’s 
response. * 

 (Pages 6 - 9) 
 

11.   MINOR MATTERS. 
 
(a) Tenterden Bowls Club.  To note the Owners Notice associated with 

the planning application for the new clubhouse. * 
 (Page 10) 

 
THE COMMITTEE WILL BE MOVED INTO CLOSED SESSION. 
Under the Public Bodies (Admissions to meetings) Act 1960, the public and press will be excluded from the 
closed session due to the confidential nature of this part of the meeting which involves the discussion of 

confidential staffing matters and confidential financial negotiations. 

 
12.   STAFFING MATTERS. 

 

To consider the report of the Staffing Sub-committee. Confidential 
Document 723A to be tabled. 

 
END OF CLOSED SESSION.  
 

13.   ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS PREVIOUSLY NOTIFIED TO THE 
CHAIRMAN. 
No decision may lawfully be made under this item but matters which involve no more than an exchange of information may be 

discussed. 

 

 
 
End. 

 
Attachments and tabled documents can be obtained from the Town Clerk’s office or downloaded from www.tenterdentowncouncil.gov.uk. 



 

 

Internal Committee 11th January 2021 
St. Michaels Spitfires 

 
We have received a request (attached) from the newly formed Under 9’s Football Team ‘St. Michaels 
Spitfires’ regarding their new home ground which is St. Michaels Recreation Ground.   
 
In December 2020, I responded to the initial request with further questions, for which I am awaiting 
the answers.  In the meantime, here were my responses marked in red to the queries following 
consultation with our Site Manager. 
 
1. Would it be possible for us to place a small storage container on site to store our pitch line 

marker? We will of course arrange insure and take full responsibility for it. Please could you 
let me know the size of the container you might need as we would need to decide where 
would be appropriate if approved. 

2. Is it possible for us to burn the pitch lines in, as is done at other playing grounds such as the 
Jubilee fields in High Halden. This would save us around 3-4 hours of measuring and marking 
out the pitch each week before the lines can be painted. It would also greatly aid our 
training sessions when the light allows us to return to the field in the summer.  Our 
Maintenance Team are against this as it not only ruins the grass, but it creates cracks in the 
soil which causes other issues.  That is, I believe, why we certainly don’t allow it in 
Tenterden.   

3. When the maintenance work has finished would it be possible for us to have a key for the 
toilets (if these are not open as standard) so that our players and spectators are able to use 
them? We can look into maybe issuing a radar key for the disabled toilet for you?  Would 
that be OK?  Otherwise it would be 20p to use the other toilets.   

4. Is it possible for the Team coaches to park in the gated area to ease the transporting of the 
goals, footballs etc?   One of the main features of our new facility is security.  We do not feel 
comfortable issuing keys so that people can park on the tarmacked area.  It is not only a key 
to the gate, but also the drop-down bollards.  Could one coach park on the slope off the 
road, but not block the footpath?   

5. Is there any access to water other than in the toilets and if so is it possible to use this for our 
line marker please?  There is currently no external water supply, but we could look at 
installing a lockable tap in the disabled toilet that they could use?   

6. When we are no longer in tier 3 we hope to be able to sell hot drinks and pre-packed snacks 
such as crisps and chocolate bars on match days in order to raise some funds for the club, 
are there any objections to this at all? We will of course provide bins & carry out a litter pick 
at the end of each match to ensure no rubbish is left behind.  I did not answer this one but 
cannot see an issue with this. 

 

With regard to vehicle access onto the tarmacked area, it is worth noting that we do not 
offer this facility to the football teams on the Tenterden Recreation Ground Football Pitch. 
 
Proposal: To consider (i) allowing the installation of a storage container on site if an 
appropriate site can be found; (ii) issuing a radar key to the football coaches; (iii) installing 
a lockable water tap within the disabled toilet. 
 

 
 
Claire Gilbert 
Deputy Town Clerk 
Impact on Crime and Disorder : None 
Impact on Bio-diversity  : None 
Budgetary Impact  : low 

Page 1

Agenda Item 7



 

 

Dear Councillors, 
 
Thank you very much in advance for your time today. My name is Charli Luke and I am the 
chairwoman of the new youth football club St Michaels Spitfires, some of you may also 
know me from my other role as one of the managers at Little Silver Country Hotel. St 
Michaels Spitfires has been set up as a not-for-profit organisation to benefit the local 
children. We currently have one under 9’s team who play in the Ashford & District Youth 
League and are currently recruiting players to form a second under 9’s team before 
expanding further to include other ages.  
 
Thank you very much for the use of St Michaels recreation ground as our match day home 
ground and summer training ground. The coaches have asked if I may request for things 
for you in order that we can run more efficiently & effectively & devote as much time as 
possible to our players:  
 
1. Would it be possible for us to place a small storage container on site to store our 

pitch line marker? We will of course arrange insure and take full responsibility for it.  
2. Is it possible for us to burn the pitch lines in, as is done at other playing grounds such 

as the Jubilee fields in High Halden. This would save us around 3-4 hours of 
measuring and marking out the pitch each week before the lines can be painted. It 
would also greatly aid our training sessions when the light allows us to return to the 
field in the summer.  

3. When the maintenance work has finished would it be possible for us to have a key for 
the toilets (if these are not open as standard) so that our players and spectators are 
able to use them?  

4. Is it possible for the coaches to park in the gated area to ease the transporting of the 
goals, footballs etc?  

5. Is there any access to water other than in the toilets and if so is it possible to use this 
for our line marker please? 

6. When we are no longer in tier 3 we hope to be able to sell hot drinks and pre-packed 
snacks such as crisps and chocolate bars on match days in order to raise some 
funds for the club, are there any objections to this at all? We will of course provide 
bins & carry out a litter pick at the end of each match to ensure no rubbish is left 
behind.  

 
Our players parents are all aware that parking on the A28 is forbidden by the club and we 
are making all travelling teams aware of this as well. We do not wish to cause any chaos 
or unnecessary traffic on match days. If you have any other requests of us then please do 
let me know.  
 
As an aside our Under 9’s played their first home match this weekend and were delighted 
to secure a win. Hopefully travelling teams parents will pop into Tenterden on occasion, I 
wonder if there is anything we can do at the ground to promote this, please let me know if 
you have any suggestions.  
 
Thank you again for your time and I look forward to hearing from you.  
 
Kind Regards 
 
Charli Luke 
Chairwoman 
St Michaels Spitfires  

Page 2



 

 

Internal Committee 11th January 2021 
Christmas Trees 

(Deferred from 14th December 2020 meeting) 
 
 
For some years now the council has provided 3 Christmas trees to display at West Cross, The 
recreation ground and the Fat Ox Green. More recently, a tree has been added at the Boots Flower 
beds. 
 
Initially the intention was for all trees to be sponsored. The tree at West Cross has not attracted 
sponsorship since the first year and this year the sponsorship of the recreation ground tree has 
lapsed. 
 
Whilst the sponsorship does assist with the purchase of the trees, baubles, lights etc it does result in 
additional administrative effort. 
 
Lights and new baubles have been purchased for all trees and the expense next year should just be 
for connection and the tree itself. 
 
In order to treat all trees in the same fashion I propose that the expense is met by the council each 
year. This year’s expense for trees alone was £307. 
 

Proposal: To consider purchasing trees and any necessary set-up fees from council 
resources. 
 
 
 
 
Phil Burgess 
Town Clerk 
 
Impact on Crime and Disorder : None 
Impact on Bio-diversity  : None 
Budgetary Impact  : Minor 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 8



 

 

Internal Committee 11th January 2021 
St Michaels Run 

(Deferred from 14th December 2020 meeting) 
 
 
I have attached an e-mail from the organiser of the St Michaels 5k and 10k run.  As the event has 
grown in recent years’ he would like to use the St Michaels Recreation Ground as the hub for the 
event instead of the Primary School & field. 
 
At the 14th December 2020 Internal Committee meeting, it was agreed to defer the decision pending 
more information being sought on the impact of this on St. Michaels PTA who were the original 
hosts.  Cllr. Mulhollland may also be able to give further details. 
 
Since the meeting in December I have contacted the St Michaels PTA. The PTA are likely to run stalls 
and attractions at the event and the organisers are flexible over the PTA involvement. The PTA will 
receive benefit from the event whatever their level of involvement (which has yet to be decided). 
The event has been moved to the recreation ground, not simply because it is growing, but also 
because the school fields cannot be used under the Covid arrangements and this restriction may 
extend beyond the event date.  
 
I have requested a joint application and the recent e-mail from Sporting Events via the PTA has also 
been attached below. 
 

Proposal: To consider allowing free use of the St Michaels Recreation Ground on 6th June 
2021 (subject to any prevailing Covid restrictions). 
 
 
 
 
Phil Burgess 
Town Clerk 
 
Impact on Crime and Disorder : None 
Impact on Bio-diversity  : None 
Budgetary Impact  : None – charge not normally levied for this recreation ground 
  

Page 4

Agenda Item 9



 

 

Good Morning, first e-mail from Sporting Events 
 
Hope you are keeping well? As you will be aware we have been organising the Tenterden 10k & 5k 
over the last few years in conjunction with St. Michael’s CEP School and their PTA. Sadly, like many 
events in 2020, due to COVID this did not take place this year. However, we are currently planning 
the 2021 event and as part of the development of the event we are looking for a bigger space for the 
Event Village and the start/finish area.  
 
We would like to use the Recreation Ground at St. Michael’s as the start/finish and Event Village 
area. The event will still be benefitting St. Michael’s but has outgrown the space and is restricting 
what we can do to develop it. We would love to be able to open the kids fun run to more young 
people in the area, but we just can’t do that in the current setting. We also would like to develop the 
Event Village to attract more people and to raise more money for the school and local causes too. 
We are looking to hold the event on 6th June 2021. Can you confirm if the St. Michael’s Recreation 
Ground is available for this use and on this date please?  
 
We spent a long time a few years ago planning the routes for the event, and so this space gives the 
most logical area for keeping the route more or less unchanged and also allowing the development 
we have mentioned. 
 
We look forward to hearing from you. 
 
Kind regards, 
 
Barry 
 
2nd e-mail from Sporting Events 
Just to follow up on our conversation, we can confirm that we will be maintaining a donation to St. 
Michael’s PTA and continuing to provide an option for the PTA to have some stalls at the event in 
the new location. The event will be owned and organised by Sporting Events UK, but will still provide 
fundraising opportunities in this way to the school and benefit the local community as a result. 
 
I hope that helps to clarify things for you. 
 
Kind regards, 
 
Barry 
 
 
Barry Hopkins 
Sporting Events UK 
 

 
 

Page 5



Page 6

Agenda Item 10



TENTERDEN TOWN COUNCIL  

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

Tenterden Town Council, Town Hall, 24 High Street, Tenterden, Kent, TN30 6AN 
Website: www.tenterdentowncouncil.gov.uk  Email: townhall@tenterdentowncouncil.gov.uk 

Telephone: 01580 762271  Fax: 01580 765647 
 

The Town and Hundred of Tenterden 
 

A Corporate Member of the Cinque Ports 

 
Alan Bates 
Chair of TDRA 

  24th December 2020 
 
Dear Alan,  
I have addressed the points in your recent letter below. 
 
Covid Impact on High Street 
We are all acutely aware of the devastating effect of the pandemic on retail and hospitality 
businesses. Whilst the Town Council has neither the funds nor the power to assist businesses 
individually, we have made strenuous efforts to support the High Street during troubled times. 
Our research indicates that shoppers would only return after lockdown if they felt safe to do so and 
our barrier policy – reviewed from time to time, ensured social distancing was still possible. In 
addition to this, the free parking negotiated between TTC with ABC in both the Station Rd Coach 
park and the Leisure Centre have encouraged the return of shoppers, more than replacing the 
parking spaces lost to safety measures. 
TTC went ahead with recruitment of a Town Centre Co-ordinator despite the pandemic, re-jigging 
the job description to concentrate on Covid assistance to businesses. Keli has been instrumental in 
signposting businesses to available grant help from ABC and the help provided under the Ashford 
Borough Recovery Plan, in close liaison with the Chamber of Commerce. As well as building a strong 
and productive relationship with TDCC and ABC’s Town Centre manager and other useful contacts at 
the Borough Council, Keli has met almost all the High Street businesses and has been arranging 
better use of social media and initiatives to assist businesses. Her experience, through talking to 
independent owners, is that most of them are weathering the storm far better than the chains and 
once Covid is past, Tenterden’s High Street will be one of the first out of the starting blocks. The 
emphasis of her role will then switch towards attracting tourism to the town which will of course 
have a beneficial long-term effect on our businesses. The mix of businesses and attracting the young 
will also be a priority, with the obvious draw of excellent recreational and youth facilities to come 
shortly on the recreation ground. With this in mind, Keli has already built strong links with 
Homewood, and has arranged for the students to present the results of a recent youth  
survey to council in the New Year. 
 
Projects 
Cinema I admit to being a little surprised at the request for an update here as I understand you to be 
a director of TCL. The offer from the council of £500,000 (less the £42,705 already spent) towards 
consultancy fees and renovation costs at the Pebbles still remains. Naturally things are in limbo at 
present because of the uncertainty, but the council will look again at any proposals put forward by 
the group once we are in better times. Again, the independents are likely to weather the storm 
better than larger concerns and I have attached for reference my recent correspondence with TCL 
which you may already have seen. 
 
Recreation Ground 
The Landscape Architects Ground Control circulated an update recently which you will have received 
as a focus group member. I attach it again here for your information. Almost all of the necessary 
surveys have been undertaken in advance of the planning application, and the application itself is 
expected to be submitted early in the new year. Pre-application advice had, of course, already been 

Page 7



TENTERDEN TOWN COUNCIL  

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

Tenterden Town Council, Town Hall, 24 High Street, Tenterden, Kent, TN30 6AN 
Website: www.tenterdentowncouncil.gov.uk  Email: townhall@tenterdentowncouncil.gov.uk 

Telephone: 01580 762271  Fax: 01580 765647 
 

The Town and Hundred of Tenterden 
 

A Corporate Member of the Cinque Ports 

sought. There are potential delays over bat and Great Crested newt surveys for the area, but we 
hope to break ground in the middle of 2021. This project has received particularly strong support 
from the public from the outset and the recent vote at council to authorise the move to planning 
stage was opposed by only one councillor. Expenditure thus far has been £63,856. 
 
Town Hall 
The planning application for this project was submitted on Monday of this week following lengthy 
consultation with the focus group and negotiation with conservation officers.  Expenditure so far is 
£125,577. The council has agreed an application for Public Works Loan Board funding which will go 
to public consultation in the new year. 
 
Overall funding & Expenditure 
As I am sure you are aware from your dealings with the Cinema group, all expenditure prior to work 
commencing relates to professional fees, consultancy and survey costs. All 3 projects follow this 
pattern. 
 
I have attached the details of funding from the Exhibition in February which best explains the 
complex breakdown. The changes since that stage include completion of the maintenance facility 
and the moving of the recreation ground and town hall projects to planning stage. 
To summarise: 
Town Hall: Project Cost £1.75m (£1m from Tent1a sale £750,000 from PWLB loan) 
Recreation Ground: Project Cost £1,622,000 (£569,000 from Tent1a, £603,000 from S106, £450,000 
from grant funding) 
 
As the attached funding diagram illustrates, the Cinema and smaller projects also draw on the 
Tent1a land sale funds and we must retain £350,000 for future projects as the initial public 
consultation required. 
 
To a large extent many of the fees incurred so far have been met from reserves or cash allocated 
from the precept specifically for projects. The balance remaining from the £3,500,000 land sale is 
£3,284,000, a healthy figure when you consider that the recently completed maintenance facility 
cost £280,000. 
 
The S106 (developer’s contribution) which I have taken into account comes only from developments 
which are in progress (Tent1a and Tilden Gill only). Other developments planned but not in 
construction (Tent1b for instance) have not been taken into account and will no doubt yield 
significant sums. We are of course able to claim this targeted funding retrospectively. 
 
In summary, in addition to the project costs (large and small) we have £350,000 for future projects 
and a healthy developers contribution on the horizon which will be used directly on projects or allow 
us to reallocate earmarked capital. 
 
Some of this may well go towards assisting the High Street, because although we derive no income 
from business, the council will consider seriously any initiative to help businesses as a whole 
 
 
 

Page 8



TENTERDEN TOWN COUNCIL  

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

Tenterden Town Council, Town Hall, 24 High Street, Tenterden, Kent, TN30 6AN 
Website: www.tenterdentowncouncil.gov.uk  Email: townhall@tenterdentowncouncil.gov.uk 

Telephone: 01580 762271  Fax: 01580 765647 
 

The Town and Hundred of Tenterden 
 

A Corporate Member of the Cinque Ports 

Yours sincerely, 

 
P Burgess,  
Town Clerk 

Page 9



Page 10

Agenda Item 11


	Agenda
	7 ST. MICHAELS SPITFIRES.
	INT7 St Michaels Spitfires Letter

	8 TOWN COUNCIL CHRISTMAS TREES.
	9 ST. MICHAELS 5K & 10K RUN.
	10 CORRESPONDENCE.
	INT10 TDRA - TTC response projects

	11 MINOR MATTERS.



